Bertocci, Cynthia $

From:

Sent: esday, June 11, 2019 4:15 P
To: Bertocci, Cynthia S

Subject: Re: FOAA request..,
Attachments; Emails with Gregg Wood pdf

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the State of Maine Mail System. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon, .

The purpose of this email is to respond to the FOAA request received by the DEP on June 6th that
was forwarded to me on Tuesday, June 11, 2019,

After review of both my town and personal email accounts and in consultation with the Attorney
General's Office, the following are my responses to the request - I have copied the request language
and the responses are in italics:

1) any and all public records pertaining to the appointment,confirmation and/or paricipation of Susan
lessard to DEP boards, commissions, task forces and/or other DEP advisory groups from January 1
2018 to June 5, 2019 within the Maine Department of Environmental Protection including, but not
limited to, the Board of the Maine Department of Environmental Protection. { was interviewed by the
Environment & Natural Resources Commitiee on January 24, 2018 and subsequently confirmed by
the Senate. Other than documents related fo the process (resume, background form, and tax
statement) that were submitted to the Governor's Office, | have no records related to appointment,
confirmation and/or participation. in addition, | have not served on any task forces, DEP boards (other
than the BEP), or DEP Advisory boards from 1/1/18 - 6/5/19.

2) any and all public records sent and received by Susan Lessard between January 1, 2018 to June
5th 2019 pertaining 1o Whole Oceans. - The only discussion with DEP related to Whole Oceans was
in regard to the wastewater discharge application and its process and appeal. Emails with Gregyg
Wood are attached fo this email

3) any and all public records pertaining to her duties and participation in rule making, review of
license applications, decisions of appeals of the Commissioner's licensing and enforcement actions,
and recommended changes in the law to the Legislature pertaining to Whole Oceans. There has
been no activity before the full Board in regard to the Whole Oceans project,

Respectfully,
Susan Lessard

On Tuesday, June 11, 2019, 10:17:16 AM EDT, Berlocai, Cynthia S <Cynthia.S Berlocci@maine.gov> wrote:




From: Martin, Kevin

Sent: Thursday, June 06, 2019 12:42 PM

To: Berlocel, Cynthia S <Cynthia. S Berlocci@maine.gov>

Cc: Loyzim, Melanie <Melanie.Loyzim@maine.gov>; Reid, Jerry <Jerry.Reid@maine.gov>; Madore, David
<David. Madore@maine.gov>

Subject: FW; FOAA request...

Hi Cindy,

Please see below FOAA request into records refating to Sue Lessard's appointment/role, As in the past, I've sent requests
for Board member records directly to you. Do we have an list/idea of DEP staff who would have been involve with this

process and might have records.

Kevin Martin

Compliance & Procedures Specialist

Maine Department of Environmental Protection
(207) 287-4305

kevin.martin@maine.gov

From: Adrienne Caldwell <dpogirainer@adriennecaldwell.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 06, 2019 2:34 AM

To: Martin, Kevin <Kevin.Marlin@maine.qov>

Subject; FOAA request,..

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the State of Maine Mail System. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Kevin Martin

Maine Deparlment of Environmenial Protection
17 State House Station

28 Tyson Drive

Augusta ME 04333

Re: Freedom of Access Act Request



Dear Mr. Marlin:

Please be advised that this is a request under the Freedom of Access Act,

t hereby request a copy of -

1) any and all public records pertaining to the appointment,confirmation andfor participation of Susan Lessard (o DEP
boards, commissions, task forces and/or other DEP advisory groups from January 1 2018 to June 5, 2018 within the
Maine Department of Environmental Protection including, but not limited io, the Board of the Maine Department of
Environmental Protection.

2) any and alt public records sent and received by Susan Lessard between January 1, 2018 to June 5th 2019 pertaining
to Whele Oceans.

3} any and all public records perlaining lo her duties and partictpation in rule making, review of license applications,
decisions of appeals of the Commissioner's licensing and enforcement actions, and recommended changes in the law to

the Legislature perlaining to Whole Oceans.

Frequest a waiver of all fees for this request. Disclosure of the requested information to me is in the public interest
because il is likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of the operations or activities of the government and

is not primarity in my commercial interest.

Thank you for your consideration of this reguest,

Sincerely,

Adrienne Caldwell

6 Spring St

Buckspor{, ME (4416
(917) 753-0563
info@adriennecaldwell.com







Wood, Gregg

From: Susan Lessard <slessard@bucksportmaine.gov>
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 3:51 PM

To: Wood, Gregg

Subject: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Appeals

Hi Greg,

Any additional appeals? Other than the one from Tuesday?

Thank you,

Sue Lessard
Sent from my iPhone







Wood, Gregg —

From: Susan Lessard <slessard@bucksportmaine.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, December 18, 2018 11:10 AM

To: Wood, Gregg

Subject: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Appeal

Does the person who filed the whole Oceans appeal have standing?
Thanks
Sue

Sent from my iPhone







Wood, Gregg

From: Wood, Gregg

Sent: Tuesday, December 18, 2018 12:49 PM
To: Lessard, Susan

Subject: RE; [EXTERNAL SENDER] Process

Sue:

Yes you are correct. See the tail end of the first paragraph Section 24{A} Appeal Period.  In response to a motion by the
licensee, the Chair may dismiss an appeal if the Chair decides an appellant is not an aggrieved person.”

Fram: Lessard, Susan {mailto:slessard@bucksporimaine.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, December 18, 2018 12:36 PM

To: Wood, Gregg <Gregg.Wood@maine.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Process

If memory serves me correctly, the Chair of the Board has the ability to decide if someone has
standing to appeal. On a couple of occasions, when it was iffy, the Board was asked to ratify the
decision of the Chair in this regard.

Is that still the case?

Thank you -

Sue

Susan Lessard | Town Manager

Town of Bucksport, Maine | Incorporated June 25, 1752
50 Main Street | P.O. Drawer X | Bucksport, Maine 04416
207.469.7368, ext. 226 (office) | 207.469.7369 {fax}
slessard@bucksportmaine.gov | www.bucksportmaine.goy

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access law, all email and email attachments received or prepared for
matters concerning Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have
received this message in error, please notify this office immediately by return email. Thank you in
advance for your cooperation.







Wood, Gre%

From: Susan Lessard <slessard@bucksportmaine.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, November 20, 2018 3:25 PM

To: Wood, Gregg

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Update

Thank you for the update.

Sue

Sent from my iPhone

On Nov 20, 2018, at 3:20 PM, Wood, Gregg <Gregg. Wood{@maine.gov> wrote:

Good afternoan Sue;

The permit has been finalized yesterday and is in the hands of our attorney over in the Office of the
Commissioner. He is taking one last look at it. The permit is scheduled to be signed no later than noon
tomorrow. Once signed, the 30-day clock for someone to appeal will begin.

From: Lessard, Susan [mailto:slessard@bucksportmaine.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, November 20, 2018 1:33 PM

To: Wood, Gregg <Gregg. Wood @maine.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Update

Any news on the WO permit or any appeals filed yet?
Sue

Susan Lessard | Town Manager

Town of Bucksport, Maine | Incorporated June 25, 1792
50 Main Street | P.O. Drawer X | Bucksport, Maine 04416
207.469,7368, ext, 226 (office) | 207.465.7369 (fax)
slessard@bucksportmaine.gov | www.bucksportmaine.qov

Under Maine's Freedom of Access law, all email and email attachments received or
prepared for matters concerning Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made
confidential by law. If you have received this message in error, please notify this
office immediately by return email. Thank you in advance for your cooperation.







Wood, Gregg

From: Woed, Gregg

Sent: Tuesday, November 20, 2018 3:21 PM
To: Lessard, Susan

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Update

Good afternoon Sue;

The permit has been finalized yesterday and is in the hands of our attorney over in the Office of the Commissioner. He is
taking one last look at it. The permit is scheduled to be signed no later than noon tomorrow. Once signed, the 30-day
clock for someone to appeal will begin.

From: Lessard, Susan [mailto:slessard @bucksportmaine.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, November 20, 2018 1:33 PM

To: Wood, Gregg <Gregg. Wood@maine.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Update

Any news on the WO permit or any appeals filed yet?
Sue

Susan Lessard | Town Manager

Town of Bucksport, Maine { Incarporated June 25, 1792
50 Main Street | P.O. Drawer X | Bucksport, Maine 04416
207.469.7368, ext. 226 (office) | 207.460.7369 (fax)
slessard@bucksportmalne.qoy | www.bucksportmaine.gov

Under Maine's Freedom of Access law, all email and email attachments received or prepared for
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

From: Lessard, Susan <slessard@bucksportmaine.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 9:43 AM

To: Wood, Gregg

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Process

Thank you very much for the information and the comments. I have read them all and there are some good
questions in some of them. I know that information exists to answer those questions. If there is anything that
you need from the Town, or from Whole Oceans, in order to address the questions - I know that they would
be happy to provide it, as would the Town,

Take care - and again - thank you faor your patience with all the questions.

Sue Lessard

Susan Lessard | Town Manager

Town of Buckspart, Maine | Incorporated June 25, 1792
50 Main Street | P.O. Drawer X | Bucksport, Maine 04416
207.463.7368, ext. 226 (office} | 207.469.7369 (fax)
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

On Tue, Oct 30, 2018 at 12:25 PM Wood, Gregg <Gregg. Wood @maine.gov> wrote:

Sue;

Here are the remainder of the comments | received

From: Lessard, Susan [mailto:slessard@bucksportmaine.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 12:02 PM

To: Wood, Gregg <Gregg.Wood @maine.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Process

One more question. Were there a lot more comments received after you sent me the list mid-afternoon?
Thanks

sue







Susan Lessard | Town Manager
Town of Bucksport, Maine | Incorperated June 25, 1792
50 Main Street | P.O. Drawer X | Bucksport, Maine 04416

207.468.7368, ext. 226 (office) | 207.469.7369 (fax)

slessard@bucksportmaine.gov | www.bucksportraine.qov

Under Maine's Freedom of Access Iaw, all email and email attachmenis received or prepared for
matters concerning Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have
received this message in error, please notify this office immediately by return email. Thank you
in advance for your cooperation.

On Tue, Oct 30, 2018 at 11:44 AM Wood, Gregg <Gregg. Wood@maine.gov> wrote:

Good morning Sue:

Now that | have all the comments | will organize them into groups of similar comments/subject matter and | need to
prepare written responses to the comments. | will incorporate them in the Fact Sheet attached to the permit and issue
the permit as final. Aggrieved parties have 30 days to appeal the permit.

From: Lessard, Susan [mailto:slessard@bucksporimaine.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 11:31 AM

To: Wood, Gregg <Grege Woed@maine.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Process

Hi Greggq,

Now that the public comment period for Whole Ccean's permit has closed. What happens next? Sorry to be
a pain. It has created a good deal of angst and anxiety here in Bucksport that Belfast project opponents
have interjected themselves into the project in Bucksport. I want to be able to give appropriate and accurate
responses when asked 'what next'?

Thank you -

Sue







Susan Lessard | Town Manager
Town of Bucksport, Maine { Incorporated June 25, 1792
50 Main Street [ P.O. Drawer X | Bucksport, Maine 04416

207.469.7368, ext. 226 (office) | 207.469.7369 (fax)

slessard@bucksportmaine.gov | www.bucksportmaine.gov

Under Maine's Freedom of Access law, all email and email attachiments received or prepared for
matters concerning Town business are likely fo be regarded as public records which may be
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
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Good morning Sue.

Wood, Gregg

Wednesday, October 31, 2018 10:30 AM
Lessard, Susan

RE: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Process

| think I’m fine for now. | will take a shot at formally responding to the comments by myself
and will reach out to Whole Oceans and other State and federal agencies if | need help. We'll
all get through this. | don’t see any show stoppers. Have a good day.

From: Lessard, Susan [mailto:slessard @bucksportmaine.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 9:43 AM

To: Wood, Gregg <Gregg.Wood @maine.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Process

Thank you very much for the information and the comments. I have read them all and there are
some good questions in some of them. I know that information exists to answer those questions. If
there is anything that you need from the Town, or from Whole Oceans, in order to address the
guestions - I know that they would be happy to provide it, as would the Town.

Take care - and again - thank you for your patience with all the questions.

Sue Lessard

Susan Lessard | Town Manager

Town of Buckspert, Maine | Incorporated June 25, 1792
50 Main Street | P.O. Drawer X | Bucksport, Maine 04416
207.469,7368, ext. 226 (office) | 207.469.7369 (fax)
slessard@bucksportmaine.qoy | www.bucksportmaine.gov

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

On Tue, Oct 30, 2018 at 12:25 PM Wood, Gregg <Gregg. Wood@maine.gov> wrote:

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

One more question. Were there a lot more comments received after you sent me the list mid-
afternoon?

Thanks

sue

Susan Lessard | Town Manager
Town of Bucksport, Maine | Incorporated June 25, 1792
50 Main Street | P.O. Drawer X | Bucksport, Maine 04416

207.469.7368, ext. 226 (office} | 207.469.7369 (fax)

slessard@bucksportmaine.gov | www.bucksportaine.gov

Under Maine's Freedom of Access Iaw, all email and email attachments received or prepared for
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

On Tue, Oct 30,2018 at 11:44 AM Wood, Gregg <Gregg, Wood@maine.gov> wrote:

Good morning Sue;

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

Hi Gregg,

Now that the public comment period for Whole Ocean's permit has closed. What happens next?
Sorry to be a pain. It has created a good deal of angst and anxiety here in Bucksport that Belfast
project opponents have interjected themselves into the project in Bucksport. I want to be abie to
give appropriate and accurate responses when asked 'what next'?

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

slessard@bucksportmaine.goy | www.bucksportmaine.gov

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

Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 12:25 PM

To: Lessard, Susan

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Process
Attachments: Comments on Draft Permit as of 1500.pdf
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
stessard@bucksportmaine.gov | www.buckspertmaine.gov

Under Maine's Freedom of Access law, all email and email attachments received or prepared for
matters concerning Town business are likely fo be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon requesf, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have
received this message in error, please notify this office immediately by return email. Thank you in
advance for your cooperation.

On Tue, Oct 30, 2018 at 11:44 AM Wood, Gregg <Gregg. Wood(@maine.gov> wrote:

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

To: Wood, Gregg <Grege. Wood@maine.gov>

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
project opponents have interjected themselves into the project in Bucksport. I want to be able to
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
207.469.7368, ext. 226 (office} | 207.469,7369 (fax)

slessard@bucksportmaine.qov | www, bucksportmaine.goy

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
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% Natural Resources Council of Maine

3 Wade Strotk » Augsts, Malne Q4330 » (207) 622-3107 « Fax: (207) 6224343 « wiwviw.nrem.ong

Mr. Gregg Wood
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP)
Via Etectronic Mail

Octobher 29, 2018

RE: Whole Oceans Bucksport

Maine Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (MEPDES) Permit #MEO037478
Maine Waste Discharge License (WDL) #W009190-6F-A-N

Proposed Draft Permit

Dear Mr. Waood:

| am writing on behalf of the Natura} Resources Council of Maine (NRCM) in opposition to the draft
permit for the proposed Whole Oceans facility in Bucksport. NRCM recagnizes the potential of land-
based aquaculture to reduce the environmental damage associated with net pen aquaculture by
reducing escapees, pollutant discharge, and the use of chemicals to control parasites such as sea lice,
However, we cannot support this permit as it currently stands for the following reasons:

1) The proposed levels of BOD, T5S, and nutrient discharges are too high (Special Condition A (1-3)).

This became clear after we reviewed the appiication® for the proposed Nordic Aquaculture salmon
facility in Belfast. That facility, although much larger, has proposed to meet far lower license limits than
the Whole Oceans facility. For example, Whole Oceans has proposed T5S and BOD limits of 4654 pounds
per day for its phase three permit for production of 10,000 to 20,000 metric tons of salmon annually. In
contrast, Nordic Aquaculture has stated it would discharge only 407 pounds per day of TSS and 356
pounds per day of BOD at an annual production rate of 33,000 metric tons of salmon. For nitrogen,
Whole Oceans has proposed a discharge level of 1865 pounds per day for its phase 1 operations, which

* would produce less than 5,000 tons of salmon annually. In contrast, Nordic Aquaculture has stated it
would discharge only 1480 pounds per day of nitrogen at its fuill production level of 33,000 tons per year

annually.

|f DEP accepts Nordic Aquacuiture’s numbers as true, it should not approve the Whole Oceans permit as
written, Instead, DEP should at least require Whole Oceans to meet comparable numbers to those
Nordic Aquaculture has proposed. DEP may also need to do further research on what it is reasonable to
expect land-based aguaculture facilities to discharge.

! proposed discharge limits for Nordic Aquaculture come from the transcript of their October 4, 2018 public
mesating In Belfast, which Nordic Aquaculture attached to its recent application for a Maine Pollutant Discharge
Elimination Systemn permit. Application and supporting materials accessed at

hitps:/ fwww.maine.zov/dep/fig/projects/nordic/MEPDES% 20Permit%20Application Final Qct%2019,%202018.

df, P, 148,







2) The proposed level of fish escapees is unacceptable {Special Condition L}, DEP should require Whole

Oceans to prevent the escape of any fish and report the escape of even a single fish.

3) DEP should require year-round monitoring and limits for nutrients (Special Condition A (1-3).
Nutrients may accumulate in sediments in winter months, and this accumulation may affect water

quality in warmer manths.

4) DEP should require monitoring at at least one site very close to the Whole Oceans outfall (Special

Condition G). The site should be at least as close to the Whole Oceans facility as Monitoring Station P3
In Attachment D is to the Bucksport sewage treatment plant. Monitoring near the proposed outfall
should Include searching for beggiatoa mats in its vicinity. NRCM understands that significant beggiatoa
growth has occurred under salmon pens when they are poorly run.

5) DEP should require Whole Qceans should monitor all parameters it can with sondes rather than just

turbidity {Special Conditign G}. With the right probes, sondes can monitar at least temperature, pH, and
dissolved oxygen, and DEP would benefit from having continuous monitoring of these parameters.

In clasing, NRCM sees potential benefit form land-based aquacuiture when compared to net pen
aquaculture. This draft permit, however, raises more questions than jt answers, and we cannot support

it in its current form.

Sincerely,

AT G

Nick Bennett
Staff Scientist







12 WABANAKI WAY
[RHOIAN ISLAND, ME 04468
TEL: 207/827/7776
FAX: 207/817/7466

PENOBSCOT NATION

DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL RESOURCES

JOHN 8. BANKS, DIRECTOR

October 29, 2018

Gregg Woad

Maine DEP Bureau of Water Quality
Divislon of Water Quality Management
17 State House Station

Augusta, ME 04333-0017

RE: Penobscot Nation comments on Whole Ocgans, LLC proposed draft permit MEPDES #MEQ037478

Dear Mr. Wood: .
The Penobscot Indian Nation is submitting these comments on the above referenced proposed draft

MEPDES permit for the Whole Oceans, LLC application for a land based recirculating aquaculture system
(RAS) in Bucksport, Malne. The proposed permit is to discharge wastewater from the new facility to the

Penobscot River.

As a riverine tribe with upstream sustenance fishing rights and active invojvement In water quality we
have interest in this facility and its potential impacts to fisherles and aquatic résources of the Penobscot
River. in general terms, given the nature of this facility and the limited knowledge about RAS effiuent
here in Maine we support Malne Department of Environmental Prataction’s (MEDEP) proposed '
approach of using 3 phases and requiring monitoring and dye studles to collect the data and information
neaded for determining water quality ipacts and establishing approptlate permit limits for the
proposed facllity. Because of some historic issues regarding algal blooms in the Penobscot River, it Is
important to better understand the effect of phospharous and nitrogen loadings to the river while
-preventing blooms from recurring. '

We have a few speclfic issues that we would like to see addressed In the final permit:

1) Given PIN's sustenance fishing'tights and our active involvement with restoration and
management of Atlantic salmon and other anadromous fish species in the Penabscot watershed
we would like to be added to the Escape Reporting Contact List in Special Condition L. We
request the following people be added to the list {Dan Kusnierz, Water Resources Manager

dan.kusnierz@penobscotnation.org; and Dan McCaw, Fish Passage Specialist
dan.mccaw@penobscotnation.org),

2) We would like to know why escapes of < 50 fish are not reportable to the Escape Reporting -
Contact List.

3) We request that total phosphorous limits be established for the facility, simifar to the approach '
used in the proposed permit for total nitrogen. While collecting information through a permit
roonitoring requiremerit Is useful, we helleve that a permit limit is needed to ensure adequate
water quality protections. Itis welt documented through ME DEP's Pencbscat River studies and

1004 Processed Chledne e







' Phosphorous Waste Load Allocation, that phosphorous has been a significant problem in the
Pencbscot River, resulting In episodlc atgal hlgoms and nan-attainment of dissolved oxygen
criteria. To prevent these problems from ring ! ME DEP has established phospharous limits

" In other discharges to the Penobscot. We belleve that Phase { should have an Initial
phospharous limit, which can then be ad;usted for Phase I and Phase |l after more information
is available through the monitoring studies in the proposed permit.

4) It is unclear why the facility will not be subject to toxics testing requirements of ME DEP's
Surface Water Toxics Control Program. 1t would seem prudent, given that this is the first permit
for the facility, to at least initially require toxics testing to better understand the potential toxics
that might be found in this effluent. 1t is unknown whether the foad that is being fed to the
various life stages of the salmon may contain toxics depending upon its source. There are
reported Instances of aquaculture fish containing high levels of toxies because of the source of
the fish food. Likewise, the drugs that may be used for disease control and antibiotlcs may
either contain or break down to contain toxics,

5} We would recommend that when drugs are used for disease control, or when antibiotics,
funglcides, bacterlcides, parasiticldes, or other compounds are used, that the faciiity should
monitor the effluent to determine whether these compounds are being removed by the RAS
treatment system and the extent to which they may enter the recelving water. It is unclear why
environmental momtonng and evaluation is required for !nvestlgattonai New Animal Prugs
{INAD) but is nat required for other compounds This data Is Imsportant to help understand the
nature of the effiuent and whether these compounds or metabolites are entering the Penobscot
River. '

6) We would like to call your attention to what appears to he missing informat;on on page 14 of
the 9/28/18 Propased Draft Fact Sheet, The seconid to last paragraph contains the following
statement “ The Department has also assessed the impact of the discharge of BOD, TS5, and

totat and mtroge n from the Whole Ocean’s facility . The underlined section appears to be
missing some words that are needed to betier understand this statement.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on this proposed draft permit. Please contact me if
you havefany fduestions regarding these comments, :

. Sinc L

Danlet A, Kisnierz '
Water Re¥opircas Program Manager,
Penobscot dian Nation Department of Natural Resources

e Ellen Weitzler, EPA
Michael Stover, EPA







Wood, Gregg —

From: Don Perkins <don@gmri.org>

Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 5:01 PM

To: Wood, Gregg

Subject: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Whole Oceans MPDES and WDL comments

Dear Mr. Wood:

I'm writing to share our view of the marine ecosystem impact and economic development considerations of the Whole
Oceans’ proposed RAS salmon facility in Bucksport in light of your draft Maine Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(MEPDES) permit and Maine Waste Discharge License {(WDL}.

Five years ago, we looked closely at the challenge of how Maine might diversify away from its risky dependence on
lobstering as the economic mainstay of our fishing communities. We concluded that responsible aquaculture is the
logical complement to our traditionai fishing economy. As a result, we're supporting the growth of responsible algae,
shellfish, and finfish production.

Maine is blessed with numerous competitive advantages on which to build a successful aquaculture industry. Our fresh
and saltwater is clean and cold, We have a deep heritage of fishery skill and experience. We have an extraordinary
network of marine research institutions to support the evolution of aquaculture here, The Maine brand is highly
respected. We're located clase to major metropolitan markets. We're known nationwide as the nation’s best-practice
state due to the Maine Department of Marine Resources’ comprehensive management of aquaculiure and the Maine
Aquaculture Association’s leadership in developing best practices.

Given our interest in aquaculture as a 21% century seafood opportunity and the carrying capacity of coastal waters,
we've been supporting strategies of responsible diversification from owner/operator lobstering into owner/operator
algae and shellfish farming, modest expansion in sea pen salmon-farming Downeast, and breakthrough attraction and
development of on-land finfish RAS (Recirculating Aqg uaculture System) production between Harpswell and Cutler.

Given the Whole Oceans draft MEPDES Permit and Waste Discharge License open for public comment, I'm writing to
share the following observations:

e Whole Oceans has developed a highly-engineered RAS production facility. They've drawn on European know-
how and technology and Maine-based marine construction expertise to do so.

e They have chosen a community and prior industrial site to build a safe, contained facility with limited
environmental impact.

e The have engineered their facility such that individual salmon escape risk is minimized with redundant barriers
and overboard discharge does not diminish water quality against current state water quality classifications.

s They have committed to a competent strategy to monitor impact from operations as they grow and evolve,
including a dye study to assess local water quality impact after their first phase is operational.

e They have hired competent operational management and committed to best-praciice operational management
approaches and training.







e Given the approach that Whole Oceans has taken to each step of their business development over the past
three years, including their proposed approach to managing environmental risks, we believe they offer Maine a
breakthrough opportunity of a significant capital investment and a leadership role in the evolution of a
responsible 21 century seafood economy.

If we can assist you in any way as you consider the Whole Oceans proposal, please contact me.

Sincerely,

Donald W. Perkins
President/CEQ

oo R R R R R R R O ROk Rk Rk R kR

Donald W, Perkins

President

Gulf of Maine Rasearch Institute
350 Commercial Street
Portland, Maine 04101

(207} 831-3627 (cell)

(207) 228-1634 (office)
don@gmri.org







WHOLE OCEANS™

MAINE SUSTAINABLE SALMON

Qctober 29, 2018

Mr. Gregg Wood

Maine Department of Environmental Protection
Bureau of Water Quality

Division of Water Quality Management

17 State House Station

Augusta, ME 04333-0017

Re: - Whole Oceans, LLC
Maine Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (MEPDES) Permit # MEC037478
Maine Waste Discharge License (WDL) # W009190-6F-A-N
Proposed Draft Permit

Dear Mr, Wood:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above-referenced draft permit. Whole Oceans
appreciates the time taken and effort made by DEP staff to develop this permit. As a general
comment, Whole Ocean agrees with the key permit findings that the proposed discharge will
meet existing water quality standards, including the antidegradation law, and that the proposed
discharge will be subject to best practicable treatment.

Whole Oceans offers the following specific comments:

o As you know, the loading rates that were provided to DEP in the waste discharge license
application are maximum loading rates. Once the facility’s treatment system is detail

designed and operational, Whole Oceans expects a reduction in those maximum projected ..o - w0
S 2

loading rates. Further, as noted in the application, the use of antibiotics and other P
therapeutic/disinfection compounds will be used only as necessary and it is not expectgd
that they will frequently be necessary due to the cateful management of intake water angd
ege supplies. Again, it is Whole Oceans’ goal to avoid the use of these compounds but,
in the unlikely event that they do need to be used, Whole Oceans has been conservati

in its estimate of frequency and volume of use.

e

» Special Condition A.1. — Measurement Frequency. The draft permit requires that BODEQ, .
and TSS be monitored three times a week and that Total Nitrogen be monitored once a-;
week. Whole Oceans understands that initially, additional BOD, TSS and Total Nitrogen
data is needed. However, given the facility’s steady-state operations, unlike a municipal
facility for example, these monitoring frequencies will not be necessary in the long term.
As soon ad a sufficient number of samples have been obtained to establish a bascline for.
BOD, TSS and Total Nitrogen, Whole Oceans will request a reduction in monitoring s
frequency. In addition, Whole Oceans may seek to develop a surrogate measure for
BOD,

{W6926020,1}







Whole Oceans notes that the BOD limit for the University of Maine Center for
Cooperative Aquaculture Research was recently removed entirely based on such new
information. Similarly, Whole Oceans will likely ask DEP to consider elimination of
other parameters such as Total Phosphorus and Total Ammonia after initial monitoring

provides information necessary for the modification.

e Whole Oceans supports the phased licensing framework of the permit. Whole Oceans
has no objections to the additional monitoring requirements (the dye study and the
ambient water quality monitoring) contained in Special Conditions F and G. However,
based on extensive water quality modeling of the projected loadings (which are
maximum projected loadings), DEP has determined that there is no measurable water
quality impact associated with Whole Oceans’ proposed discharge. Based on water
quality data obtained beginning on May 1% of 2019, Whole Oceans may request a
reduction in the instream monitoring frequency of twice per month in subsequent years.

e As the Department knows, there are no numeric effluent limitation guidelines for
recirculating aquaculture systems (RAS). The Department has appropriately incorporated
into the permit the narrative guidelines set out in 40 C.F.R. 451.11, The Department has
determined that 30 milligram per liter as a monthly average and 50 milligram per liter as
a daily maximum represent its best professional judgment of numeric best practical
sreatment for RAS facilities. This determination has been consistently applied to RAS
facilities in Maine (e.g., Palom Aquaculture LLC and the Center for Cooperative
Aquaculture Research). These BPJ/BPT numeric limitations are based on EPA draft
guidelines and represent a secondary level of treatment. (See Fact Sheet at page 9 of 15.)
It should also be noted that compliance with these BOD and TSS limitations will ensure
removal efficiencies equivalent o or greater than those applicable to publicly-owned

treatment works with secondary treatment.

Thank you for your consideration of these comments.

Sincerely, ~

T

Jason Mitchell

Whole Qccans

President & Chief Operating Officer
www.wholeoceans.cot

jmitcheli@whoieoceans.com
207-751-3530

(W5026020-1)







Date: October 29, 2018

Maine Department of Environmental Protection

Bureau of Water QualityiDivision of Water Quality Managementi]
17 State House StationAugusta, ME 04333-0017

gregg. wood@maine.gov

By Jim Merkel

97 Patterson Hill Rd
Belfast, Maine 04915
(207)323-1474
jimimerkel@gmail.com

Maine Poltutant Discharge Elimination System (MEPDES) Permit #ME0037478 Maine
Waste Discharge License (WDL) #W009190-6F-A-NTProposed Draft Permit

Dear Gregg,

I'm writing to request a hearing and to submit questions and comments regarding the
Whole Occans Waste Discharge Elimination System.

1. The historical and recent status of the Penobscot Bay lists it as Maine’s largest
and most productive fishery and estuary system. [t is also noted as one of the most
significant estuaties on the eastern seaboard. It can produce high quantities of
wild fish, but has been severely mismanaged -- a tragedy to the regional
ecosystem, the economy and culture. The waters and rivers have been cleaned
considerably since the days of industrial pollution and organic runoff. Many
industrial polluters have gone out of business, left the area or reduced their
outflow. At this critical time, as migrating fish are just beginning to recover,
locating an outflow pipe in the mouth of the Penobscot River is troublesome.

9. The outflow out flow pipe is located deep within the estuary, not even close to
deep ocean currents. Can Whole Oceans please provide scientific evidence that
the chemistry, nitrogen, and salmon related kairomones and pheromones will have
no negative impacts on the River, Bay and iis recovery?

3. The aquaculture industry’s profits will likely increase as the wild fishery decline.
Author Naomi Klein calls this, “Disaster Capitalism,” or profiting from disaster,
in this case, Maine’s fishery collapse is a disaster to the working waterfront, the
ecology, and future generations, yet WO business will profit as wild stocks are
further damaged, What investments in the wild fish recovery is WO willing to
make? 